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Key Operating & Financial Data

December
31, 2019

7,927.13
 

3,458.89
 

3,011.05
 

2,137.41

2,843.73

 -
   

1,607.39

1,752.59

2,406.81

4,596.32

19.58

 26.05
 

 83.11
 

0:100

92%

December
31, 2018

 8,250.37 

 3,750.99 

 3,290.18 

 2,134.92 

 2,299.96 

 -
   

 1,608.30
 

 1,868.59 

 1,558.58 

 4,168.55 

 19.56
 

 21.07 

 92.01 

0:100

90%

December
31, 2017

 9,291.44
 

 4,545.97
 

 4,168.82 
 

2,797.87 

 2,340.45
 

 -   

 1,452.16 

 1,837.74 

 1,205.16 

 4,178.20 

  25.63 

 21.44 

 124.73 

0:100

93.6%

December
31, 2016

 9,295.47

 4,627.48 

 4,137.17 

 2,748.62 

 2,145.88 

 -   

 1,999.35 

 2,494.51 

 1,319.79 

 4,640.39 

 25.18 

 19.66 

 113.59 

0:100

109%

December
31, 2015

 8,828.24 

 4,285.16 

 3,731.67
 

 2,456.58 

 2,693.68 

 298.76 

 1,940.07 

 2,873.68 

 1,854.84 

 5,567.36 

 22.51
 

 24.68 

 93.09 

10:90

120%

December
31, 2014

 7,921.66 

 3,507.88 

 2,997.12 

 2,086.31 

2 2,583.90
 

 896.27 

 1,898.23 
 

3,572.95 
 

1,988.84 

 6,156.84 

 19.11
 

 23.67 

 77.65 

26:74

71%

Statement of Profit or Loss (Rs. in Millions)

Revenue

Gross Profit

Profit Before Taxation

Profit After Taxation

Statement of Financial Position (Rs. in Millions)

Share Holder Equity

Long term Loans

Current Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Current Assets

Total Assets

Ratios

Earnings Per Ordinary Share (Rs)

Break up Value Per Ordinary Share (Rs)

Return on Equity (%)

Debt Equity Ratio

Dividend Payout Ratio
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Statement Of Compliance With The 
Repealed Listed Companies (Code Of Corporate Governance) 
Regulations, 2017 And The Listed Companies (Code Of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

The Company has complied with the requirements of the repealed Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 
2017 for the period January 1, 2019 to 24 September 2019 and the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 
2019 (here-in-after referred as ‘the Regulations’’) effective from 25 September 2019 in the following manner:

1. The total number of directors are 7 as per the following:

 a. Male: six (6)
 b. Female: one (1)

2.   The composition of the Board is as follows:
 a) Independent Directors: 
 i.  Mr. Gordon Alan P. Joseph
 ii. Mr. Roman Felipe S. Reyes

 b) Non-executive Directors
 i.   Mr. Andrew James Dawes - Chairman of the Board
 ii.  Mr. Aasim Azim Siddiqui
 iii. Ms. Gigi Iluminada Miguel [Female Director]
 iv. Mr. Hans-Ole Madsen [Resigned on February 11, 2020. Mr. Jacob Christian   
  Gulmann was appointed in his place on February 14, 2020]
 v.  Mr. Sharique Azim Siddiqui
 
 c) Executive Director/Chief Executive Officer
     Mr. Khurram Aziz Khan

 * At the time of election of Directors on February 24, 2018, the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations,  
 2017 required listed companies to have at-least two or one third of Independent Directors (whichever is higher) which in  
 our case is 2.33. The same cannot be rounded up due to issuance of the Regulations subsequent to the election of  
 Directors.

3. The Directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed companies, including  
 this Company.

4. The Company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to disseminate it  
 throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and procedures.

5. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of the Company.  
 The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of the significant policies along with their date of approval or  
 updating is maintained by the company.

6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken by the  
 Board/shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act) and the Regulations.

7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director elected by the Board for  
 this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of the Act and the Regulations with respect to frequency,  
 recording and circulating minutes of meetings of the Board.

8. The Board has a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in accordance with the Act and  
 the Regulations.

9. During the year, Mr. Hans-Ole Madsen, Mr. Andrew James Dawes and Ms. Gigi Iluminada Miguel have obtained Directors  
 Training Certification from Institute of Corporate Directors, Philippines, a member of the Global Network of Director  
 Institutes.

10. There have been no changes in the position of Chief Financial Officer (CFO), Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit  
 during the year.

11. Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the Board.
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Statement Of Compliance With The 
Repealed Listed Companies (Code Of Corporate Governance) 

Regulations, 2017 And The Listed Companies (Code Of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

12. The Board has formed following committees comprising of members given below:

 a) Audit Committee 
 i.   Mr. Roman Felipe S. Reyes, Chairman
 ii.  Ms. Gigi Iluminada Miguel, Member
 iii. Mr. Sharique Azim Siddiqui, Member

 b) Human Resource and Remuneration Committee 
 i.   Mr. Gordon Alan P. Joseph, Chairman
 ii.  Mr. Andrew James Dawes, Member 
 iii. Mr. Aasim Azim Siddiqui, Member

 c) Risk Management Committee 
 i.   Mr. Gordon Alan P. Joseph, Chairman
 ii.  Mr. Andrew James Dawes, Member
 iii. Mr. Sharique Azim Siddiqui, Member

13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to the committees for  
 compliance.

14.  The frequency of meetings of the committees were as per following:

 a) Audit Committee [Quarterly]
 b) Human Resource and Remuneration Committee [Yearly]
 d) Risk Management Committee [Yearly]
 
15. The Board has set up an effective internal audit function that is considered suitably qualified and experienced for the  
 purpose and is conversant with the policies and procedures of the Company.

16. The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under the Quality  
 Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) and registered with Audit Oversight  
 Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC)  
 guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the ICAP and that they and the partners of the firm involved in the audit are  
 not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent children) of the Chief Executive Officer, Chief  
 Financial Officer, Head of Internal Audit, Company Secretary or Directors of the company.

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services except in  
 accordance with the Act, the regulations or any other regulatory requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they  
 have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

18.  We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations have been complied with;  
 and

19. We confirm that all the requirements of repealed Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017 
 have been complied with until the date of its applicability.

Mr. Andrew James Dawes
Chairman of the Board
Dated: February 24, 2020

Mr. Khurram Aziz Khan
Chief Executive Officer
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Statement of Financial Position
As At December 31, 2019

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
 Property, plant and equipment
 Intangibles
 Long-term deposits

CURRENT ASSETS
 Stores, spare parts and loose tools – net
 Trade debts – net
 Advances
 Deposits, prepayments and other receivables
 Short-term investments – net
 Cash and bank balances

TOTAL ASSETS

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
 Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital 
 Reserves

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
 Deferred taxation – net
 Long-term employee benefits

CURRENT LIABILITIES
 Trade and other payables
 Unclaimed dividends
 Taxation – net

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

The annexed notes from 1 to 35 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

4
5

6
7
8
9

10
11

12
12.3

13
14

15

16

2,108,450
70,632
10,424

2,189,506

427,508
438,165

6,389
219,117

-
1,315,635
2,406,814 
4,596,320

1,091,532
1,752,198
2,843,730

87,328
57,871

145,199

1,518,866
55,885
32,640

1,607,391
 

4,596,320

2,500,137
99,403
10,424

2,609,964

473,947
419,206

35,415
204,682

-
425,339

1,558,589 
4,168,553

1,091,532
1,208,427
2,299,959

205,974
54,323

260,297

1,478,512
122,578

7,207
1,608,297

 
4,168,553

------------ (Rs in thousands) ------------Note

December 31,
2019

December 31,
2018

Chief Executive Officer Director

Chief Financial Officer

Pakistan International Container Terminal Limited 31



Pakistan International Container Terminal Limited 32

Statement of Profit or Loss

Revenue – net
Cost of services

Gross profit
Administrative expenses

Other expenses

Finance cost

Other income

Profit before taxation

Taxation 
Profit after taxation

Earnings per ordinary share – basic and diluted

The annexed notes from 1 to 35 form an integral part of these financial statements.

17

18

 

19
 
20

 21
 
22

 
23

24

7,927,129

(4,468,237)

3,458,892

(518,684)

(20,719)

(489)

92,051

3,011,051

(873,644)

2,137,407

19.58

8,250,377

(4,499,383)

3,750,994

(478,671)

(7,388)

(1,060)

26,310

3,290,185

(1,155,260)

2,134,925

19.56

------------ (Rs in thousands) ------------

------------------ (Rupees) --------------

Note

December 31,
2019

December 31,
2018

For The Year Ended December 31, 2019

Chief Executive Officer Director

Chief Financial Officer

Statement of Comprehensive Income
For The Year Ended December 31, 2019

Profit after taxation
Other comprehensive income

Total Comprehensive Income
 
The annexed notes from 1 to 35 form an integral part of these financial statements.

  2,134,925

  -
  
  2,134,925

2,137,407

-

2,137,407

------------ (Rs in thousands) ------------

December 31,
2019

December 31,
2018

Chief Executive Officer Director

Chief Financial Officer
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Statement of Cash Flows
For The Year Ended December 31, 2019

Chief Executive Officer Director

Chief Financial Officer

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Taxes paid
Long-term employee benefits paid
Finance cost paid
Increase in long term deposits
Net cash generated from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital expenditure
Proceeds from disposal of operating fixed assets
Markup on savings accounts received
Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividends paid 
Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

The annexed notes from 1 to 35 form an integral part of these financial statements.

3,931,097

(1,293,238)
(2,801)
(1,062)
(1,695)

2,632,301

(290,204)
1,166

17,856
(271,182)

 

(2,098,634)
(2,098,634)

262,485
162,854

425,339

Note

29

14

11

3,696,218

(966,857)
(3,926)

(489)
-   

2,724,946

(257,324)
3,058

79,945
(174,321)

(1,660,329)
(1,660,329)

890,296
425,339

1,315,635

------------ (Rs in thousands) ------------

December 31,
2019

December 31,
2018
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Statement of Changes In Equity
For The Year Ended December 31, 2019

Chief Executive Officer Director

Chief Financial Officer

Balance as at December 31, 2017
Profit after taxation
Other comprehensive income 
Total comprehensive income

Final cash dividend for the year 
   ended December 31, 2017 
   @ Rs 6.43/- per ordinary share

Interim cash dividends for the year 
   ended December 31, 2018 
   @ Rs 13.50/- per ordinary share

Balance as at December 31, 2018
Profit after taxation
Other comprehensive income 
Total comprehensive income

Final cash dividend for the year 
   ended December 31, 2018 
   @ Rs 4.10/- per ordinary share

Interim cash dividends for the year 
   ended December 31, 2019 
   @ Rs 10.50/- per ordinary share

Balance as at December 31, 2019

The annexed notes from 1 to 35 form an integral part of these financial statements.

1,091,532

-
-
-

-

-

1,091,532

-
-
-

-

-

1,091,532

180,000

-
-
-

-

-

180,000

-
-
-

-

-

180,000

1,068,925

2,134,925
-

2,134,925

(701,855)

(1,473,568)

1,028,427

2,137,407
-

2,137,407

(447,528)

(1,146,108)

1,572,198

1,248,925

2,134,925
-

2,134,925

(701,855)

(1,473,568)

1,208,427

2,137,407
-

2,137,407

(447,528)

(1,146,108)

1,752,198

2,340,457

2,134,925
-

2,134,925

(701,855)

(1,473,568)

2,299,959

2,137,407
-

2,137,407

(447,528)

(1,146,108)

2,843,730

Issued,
subscribed
and paid-up

capital

Capital reserve
Capital

redemption
reserve fund

Revenue reserve
Unappropriated

profits Total reserves

------------------------------- (Rs in thousands) ----------------------

Total
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION AND OPERATIONS

1.1. Pakistan International Container Terminal Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan as a private limited  
 company in June 2002. Subsequently, it was converted to an unquoted public limited company and later on listed on the  
 Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited on October 15, 2003. The registered office of the Company is situated at Berths 6 - 9, East  
 Wharf, Karachi Port, Karachi.

1.2. The Company has a Build, Operate and Transfer (BOT) contract with Karachi Port Trust (KPT) for the exclusive construction,  
 development, operations and management of a common user container terminal at Karachi Port for a period of twenty-one  
 years commencing June 18, 2002. After the expiry date, the Company will transfer all the concession assets to KPT as disclosed  
 in note 34 to these financial statements.

1.3. The Company is a subsidiary of ICTSI Mauritius Limited whereas its ultimate parent company is International Container Terminal  
 Services Inc., a company incorporated in Philippines.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1. Statement of compliance
   These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of approved accounting standards as  
 applicable in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of such International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)  
 issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFASs) issued by  
 Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP), as are notified under the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act) and provisions  
 of and directives issued under the Act. In case requirements differ, the provisions and directives of the Act, shall prevail.

 The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) in pursuance of the S.R.O No. 24(I)/2012 dated January 16,  
 2012 has given relaxation for the implementation of IFRIC 12 - “Service Concession Arrangements” due to the practical  
 difficulties facing the companies. The impact on the financial results of the Company due to application of IFRIC-12 is  
 disclosed in note 34 to these financial statements.

2.2. Basis of measurement
 These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention unless otherwise specifically  
 stated.

2.3. New standards, amendments to approved accounting standards and new interpretations

2.3.1.  Adoption of standards and amendments effective during the year
 The Company has adopted the following accounting standards, the amendments and interpretations of IFRSs which  
 became effective for the current year:

 IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
 IFRS 9  Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation (Amendments)
 IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
 IFRS 16 Leases
 IAS 19  Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement (Amendments)
 IAS 28  Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures (Amendments)
 IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments (Interpretation)

 Annual IFRS Improvement Process

 IFRS 3  Business Combinations - Previously held Interests in a joint operation
 IFRS 11  Joint Arrangements - Previously held Interests in a joint operation
 IAS 12  Income Taxes - Income tax consequences of payments on financial instruments classified as equity
 IAS 23  Borrowing Costs - Borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation
 
 The adoption of the above standards, amendments and improvements to accounting standards did not have any
 material effect on the Company’s financial statements, except for the changes related to adoption of IFRS 9 ‘Financial  
 Instruments’ and IFRS 15 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers' as explained below:

For The Year Ended December 31, 2019
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended December 31, 2019

2.3.1a. IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments
 IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’, has replaced IAS 39 ‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’ for
 annual periods beginning on or after July 01, 2018 (as notified by SECP vide SRO 229 (1)/2019), bringing together
 all three aspects of the accounting for financial instruments: classification and measurement; impairment; 
 and hedge accounting. IFRS 9 categorises financial assets at (a) Amortised Cost; (b) Fair Value Through Other 
 Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI); and (c) Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL) and their classification is based
 on the business model in which a financial asset is managed and its contractual cash flow characteristics. IFRS 9
 has changed the accounting for impairment losses for financial assets by replacing IAS 39’s incurred loss approach
 with a forward  looking Expected Credit Loss (ECL) approach. IFRS 9 requires to recognise a loss allowance for ECLs on
 debt instruments measured subsequently at Amortised Cost or at FVTOCI. There are no significant changes in the
 existing requirements in IAS 39 for the classification and measurement of financial liabilities. Moreover, the adoption of
 the ECL requirements of IFRS 9 has not resulted in increase in impairment allowances of the Company’s debt financial  
 assets. Accordingly, the opening retained earnings as of January 01, 2019 have not been restated in these financial  
 statements.

 As allowed under IFRS 9, the Company has used an exemption not to restate comparative information for prior
 periods with respect to classification and measurement (including impairment) requirements and therefore, the
 information presented for prior periods does not reflect the requirements of IFRS 9, but rather those of IAS 39. 
 Further, as initial application of IFRS 9 did not have a significant impact on the measurement and impairment of 
 the Company’s existing financial assets and liabilities as at January 01, 2019 other than the change in classification 
 of loans and receivables and held to maturity to the category of amortised cost.

 The accounting policy in respect of financial instruments and impairment of financial assets is stated in note 3.15.1  
 to these financial statements.

2.3.1b. IFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers
 IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’ establishes a comprehensive framework for determining 
 whether, how much and when revenue is recognized. It has replaced IAS 18 ‘Revenue Recognition’, IAS 11 
 ‘Construction Contracts’ and related interpretations for annual periods beginning on or after July 01, 2018. 
 IFRS 15 establishes a five-step model to account for revenue arising from contracts with customers. Revenue 
 is recognised when a customer obtains control of the goods or services and the determination of timing of the transfer
  of control at a point in time or over time requires judgement. Further, revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects 
 the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a 
 customer. 

 The Company render services and related variable consideration to the customers and has concluded that the  
 first-time application of IFRS 15 by the Company does not have any significant effect with regard  to the amount and  
 timing of revenue and variable consideration recognised. Accordingly, opening reserves as at January  01, 2019 does  
 not required to be restated. As allowed under IFRS 15, the Company has adopted the new standard on the 
 required effective date using a modified retrospective method, therefore the information presented for 
 prior periods has not been restated, that is, it is presented, as previously reported, under IAS 18 and related
 interpretations and additional disclosure requirements in IFRS 15 have not been applied to comparative information. 
 
 The accounting policy in respect of revenue recognition is stated in note 3.15.2 to these financial statements.

2.3.2. Standards, interpretations and amendments to approved accounting standards that are not   
 yet effective

 The following revised standards, amendments and interpretations with respect to the approved accounting  
 standards as applicable in Pakistan would be effective from the dates mentioned below against the respective  
 standards or interpretations:
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended December 31, 2019

 Standard or interpretation:

 IFRS 3 Definition of a Business (Amendments)       
 IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts         
 IAS 1/ IAS 8 Definition of Material (Amendments)       

 The above standards and amendments, where applicable, are not expected to have any material impact on the 
 Company's financial statements in the period of initial application. The Company is currently evaluating the  
 impact of these standards. 
      
 The IASB has also issued the revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting (the Conceptual Framework)
 in March 2018 which is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 01, 2020 for preparers of  
 financial statements who develop accounting policies based on the Conceptual Framework. The revised Conceptual  
 Framework is not a standard, and none of the concepts override those in any standard or any requirements in a  
 standard. The purpose of the Conceptual Framework is to assist IASB in developing standards, to help preparers  
 develop consistent accounting policies if there is no applicable standard in place and to assist all parties to
 understand and interpret the standards.

 Further, following new standard have been issued by IASB which are yet to be notified by the SECP for the purpose 
 of applicability in Pakistan.

 Standards

 IFRS 1 First time adoption of IFRSs

 Currently, the Company expects that above new standard will not have any material impact on the Company’s  
 financial statements in the period of initial application.

2.4.  Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions
 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires the use of 
  certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of
 applying the Company’s accounting policies. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based  
 on historic experience and other factors, including expectation of future events that are believed to be reasonable  
 under the circumstances. In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, the management has  
 made the following estimates and judgments which are significant to the financial statements:

 a)      determining the method of depreciation, residual values and useful lives of operating fixed assets (note 4.1);

 b)  determining the method of amortisation, residual values and useful lives of intangibles (note 5.1);
 
 c)  determining the provision for obsolescence of stores, spare parts and loose tools (note 6);
 
 d)  determining the allowance for expected credit loss (note 7);

 e)  determining the provision for impairment in short-term investments (note 10);

 f)  recognition of deferred taxation (note 13); and

 g)      expected outcome of contingencies involving the Company (note 16).

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
3.1. Property, plant and equipment
3.1.1. Operating fixed assets

 These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. 
 Depreciation is charged to statement of profit or loss using straight line method so as to write off the historical cost of the 
 assets over their estimated useful lives at the rates specified in note 4.1 to these financial statements. Depreciation on 
 additions is charged from the month in which the asset is available for use and on disposals up to the month the respective 
 asset was in use. Assets’ residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, 
 at each reporting date.

IASB Effective date 
(annual periods 

beginning on or after)

Effective date 
(annual periods

beginning on or after)

 January 01, 2004

  January 01, 2020
 July 01, 2019

  January 01, 2020
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended December 31, 2019

 The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each reporting date for indication that an asset may 
 be impaired and carrying values may not be recovered. If any such indication exists and where the carrying values 
 exceed the estimated recoverable amount, the assets or cash generating units are written down to their recoverable 
 amount. The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment is the higher of fair value less cost to sell and value in use.

  Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to statement of profit or loss as and when incurred. Major renewals and 
 improvements, if any, are capitalised when it is probable that respective future economic benefits will flow to the
 Company.

  An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are 
 expected from its use. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount of the 
 relevant assets. These are included in the statement of profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

3.1.2. Capital work-in-progress
  These are stated at cost less any impairment in value. All expenditures connected with specific assets incurred during 
 installation and construction period including advances to suppliers and contractors are carried under this head. 
 These are transferred to specific assets as and when these assets are available for use.

3.2. Intangibles
 An intangible asset is recognised if it is probable that the future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will  
 flow to the Company and that the cost of such asset can also be measured reliably. 

  Costs incurred on the acquisition of intangibles are capitalised and are amortised on straight line basis over their  
 estimated useful life. Amortisation is charged in the month in which the asset is available for use at the rates stated in  
 note 5.1 to these financial statements. 

 Useful lives of intangible assets are reviewed, at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate.

 The carrying values of intangible assets are reviewed for impairment at each reporting date for events or changes in  
 circumstances that indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable.

3.2.1. Intangible assets under development
  Intangible assets under development are stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. It consists  
  of expenditure incurred and advances made in respect of intangible assets under development in the course  
  of their development and installation. The assets are transferred to relevant category of intangible assets when  
  they are available for use.

3.3. Stores, spare parts and loose tools
 Stores, spare parts and loose tools are valued at lower of net realisable value and cost. Cost is determined using first-in-first-out  
 (FIFO) basis except for those in transit which are stated at invoice price plus other charges paid thereon up to the reporting date.  
 Provision is made annually in the financial statements for slow moving and obsolete items if required.

3.4. Cash and cash equivalents
 For the purpose of statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand and balances with banks, pay  
 orders in hand, cheques in hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short-term highly liquid investments with original  
 maturities of three months or less.

3.5. Taxation

 Current
 The charge for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rates of taxation in accordance with the Income Tax  
 Ordinance, 2001 after considering rebates and tax credits available, if any, and includes adjustments to charge for prior years,  
 if any.



Pakistan International Container Terminal Limited 40

Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended December 31, 2019

 Deferred
 Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet liability method, on all major temporary differences arising at the reporting  
 date between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

 Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible  
 temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that the future taxable profits will be available against which the assets  
 may be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be  
 realised.

 The carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
 probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recognised.
 Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has  
 become probable that future taxable profit will allow deferred tax asset to be recovered.

 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is  
 realised or the liability is settled, based on the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the  
 reporting date.

3.6. Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
 All loans and borrowings are initially recognised at fair value less directly attributable transaction costs and have not been
 designated ‘as at fair value through profit or loss’. After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently  
 measured at amortised cost using effective interest rate method.
 
 Gains and losses are recognised in statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the  
 amortisation process.

3.7. Provisions
 Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events and  
 it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a  
 reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Provision are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the  
 current best estimate.

3.8. Staff retirement benefits
 The Company operates a recognised provident fund scheme (defined contribution plan) for all its eligible permanent 
 employees. Equal monthly contributions are made by the Company and the employees to the fund in accordance with 
 the rules of the provident fund scheme. Contributions from the Company are charged to statement of profit or loss for 
 the year.

3.9. Long-term employee benefits
 The Company provides a facility to its employees for accumulating their annual earned leave under an unfunded scheme.

 Accruals are made to cover the obligation under the scheme on accrual basis and are charged to statement of profit or  
 loss. Accrual for compensated absences for employees is calculated on the basis of one month’s gross salary. The 
 amount of liability recognised in the statement of financial position is calculated by the Company using the above basis  
 as the difference in liability is not expected to be material using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

3.10. Foreign currency translations
 Foreign currency transactions are translated into Pakistani Rupee (functional currency) using the exchange rates  
 prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are re-translated  
 into Pakistani Rupee using the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date. Foreign exchange gains and losses  
 resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translations at year end exchange rates of monetary  
 assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are taken to statement of profit or loss.

3.11. Dividend
 Dividend is recognised as a liability in the period in which it is approved.
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3.12. Impairment of non-financial assets
 The carrying value of non-financial assets other than inventories and deferred tax assets are assessed at each reporting  
 date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indications exist, then the recoverable 
 amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised, as an expense in the statement of profit or loss, for the amount 
 by which an asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s 
 fair value less cost to sell and value in use. Value in use is determined through discounting of estimated future cash flows 
 using a discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risk specific to the assets. 
 For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which they are separately identifiable 
 cash flows (cash generating units).

3.13. Segment reporting
 These financial statements have been prepared on the basis of single reportable segment which is consistent with the 
 internal reporting of the Company.

3.14. Functional and presentation currency
 These financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupee which is the Company's functional and presentation currency.

3.15. New accounting policies under IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 effective for period beginning on
 January 01, 2019
 During the year, the Company has adopted IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 which became applicable on January 01, 2019. This has  
 resulted in a change in accounting policies of the Company for financial instruments and revenue recognition. The changes  
 are discussed in note 2.3.1 to these financial statements.

 The new accounting policies for financial instruments and revenue recognition are as follows:

3.15.1. Financial instruments
 A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
 instrument of another entity.

 i) Financial assets

 Initial recognition and measurement
 Under IFRS 9, on initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortised cost; Fair Value through Other  
 Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) or Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL). 

 The classification of financial assets under IFRS 9 is generally based on the business model in which a financial asset is  
 managed and its contractual cash flow characteristics.

 A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

   it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and
   its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest  
   on the principal amount outstanding.

 A debt instrument is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

   it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling  
   financial assets; and
   its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on  
   the principal amount outstanding.

 On initial recognition of a debt instrument that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect to present
 subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in statement of other comprehensive income. This election is made
 on  an investment-by-investment basis.

 All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are measured at FVTPL. This  
 includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset  
 that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or  
 significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.
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  A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component that is initially measured at the  
 transaction price, determined under IFRS 15) is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction  
 costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition.

 Subsequent measurement
 For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

   Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments). These are subsequently measured using the effective  
   interest (EIR) method and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in statement of profit or  
   loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired. The Company’s financial assets at amortised cost includes  
   trade receivables.
   Financial assets at fair value through OCI with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt instruments).
   Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon derecognition  
   (equity instruments).
   Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

 Derecognition
 A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial assets) is primarily  
 derecognised (i.e., removed from the Company’s statement of financial position) when:

   The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or
   The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay  
   the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and  
   either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the  Company has  
   neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the  
   asset.

 When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it  
 evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained  
 substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the  
 transferred asset to the extent of its continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The  
 transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has  
 retained.

 Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original  
 carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

 Impairment / expected credit loss (ECL) on financial assets
 The Company recognises an allowance for ECLs for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based  
 on  the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company  
 expects to receive. The shortfall is then discounted at an approximation to the asset’s original effective interest rate.

 The Company considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 275 days past due. However, in  
 certain cases, the Company may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or external information  
 indicates that the Company is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account  
 any credit enhancements held by the Company. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation  
 of recovering the contractual cash flows.

  The Company uses the standard’s simplified approach and calculates ECL based on life-time ECL on its financial assets.  
 The Company has established a provision matrix that is based on the Company’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted  
 for forward-looking factors specific to the financial assets and the economic environment. The assessment of the correlation  
 between historical observed default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECL is a significant estimate. The amount of  
 ECL is sensitive to changes in circumstances and of forecast economic conditions. The Company's historical credit loss  
 experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not be representative of customer’s actual default in the future.  
 The ECLs are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

 ii) Financial liabilities

 Initial recognition and measurement
 Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and  
 borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. 
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 All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of  
 directly attributable transaction costs.

 The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables and due to related parties.

 Subsequent measurement

 Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
 Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities 
 designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are  
 recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through  
 profit or loss are designated at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in IFRS 9 are satisfied. The Company  
 has not designated any financial liability as fair value through profit or loss.

 Loans and borrowings
 This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are  
 subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in statement of profit  
 or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

  Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an  
 integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit or loss. This category  
 generally applies to interest-bearing loans and borrowings.

 Derecognition
 A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an  
 existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an  
 existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the  
 original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in  
 the statement of profit or loss.

 iii) Offsetting of financial instruments
 Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial position 
 if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net 
 basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. Income and expense arising from such assets and 
 liabilities are also offset accordingly.

3.15.2. Revenue
 As per the business principles, revenue from contracts with customers is recognised net of rebates, if any when the
 services are rendered to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be 
 entitled in exchange for those services.

 The performance obligations of port berth operations are satisfied and payment is generally due upon completion  
 and billing of the services.

 Profit on deposits / saving accounts are recognised on effective interest rate basis.

 Other income is recognised on accrual basis.

3.16. Following accounting policies (from 3.16.1 to 3.16.8) were effective for the period ended on or 
 before December 31, 2018

3.16.1. Trade debts
 Trade debts originated by the Company are recognised and carried at original invoice amounts less provision for
 doubtful debts. Provision for doubtful debts is based on the management's assessment of customers' outstanding  
 balances and creditworthiness. Bad debts are written-off when identified.
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3.16.2. Loans, advances and other receivables
 After initial measurement these are carried at amortised cost less any allowance for impairment. 

 Gains and losses are recognised in the profit or loss when the loans, advances and other receivables are derecognised  
 or impaired.

3.16.3. Investments
 The investments of the Company, upon initial recognition, are classified as investment at fair value through profit or loss,  
 held to maturity investment or available for sale investment, as appropriate. The Company determines the
 classifica tion of its financial assets after initial recognition and, where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this 
 designation at each financial year-end.
 
 When investments are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of investments not at fair value
 through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.

 At fair value through profit or loss
 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading and financial assets  
 designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

 Investments which are acquired principally for the purpose of generating profit from short term fluctuations in  
 price or dealer’s margin are classified as held for trading. After initial recognition, these are stated at fair values  
 with any resulting gains or losses recognised directly in the statement of profit or loss. Transaction costs are  
 charged to statement of profit or loss when incurred.

 Held-to-maturity investments
 Investments with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity where management has both the positive intent 
 and ability to hold to maturity are classified as held to maturity and are stated at amortised cost using the effective
 interest method. Gains and losses are recognised in statement of profit or loss when the investments are derecognised 
 or impaired, as well as through the amortisation process.

 Available-for-sale investments
 Investments which are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time but may be sold in response to the need for 
 liquidity or changes in interest rates are classified as available for sale. After initial measurement, these are stated at 
 fair values with unrealised gains or losses recognised directly in other comprehensive income until the investment is 
 disposed or determined to be impaired. At the time of disposal, the cumulative gain or loss previously recorded in other 
 comprehensive income is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

 Fair value of investments
 The fair value of investments that are actively traded in organised financial markets is determined by reference to  
 quoted market bid prices at the close of business on the reporting date. For investments where there is no active  
 market, fair value is determined using valuation techniques.

3.16.4. Trade and other payables
 Liabilities for trade and other payables are carried at cost which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid in  
 future for goods and services received whether or not billed to the Company.

3.16.5. Financial instruments
 Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised at the time when the Company becomes a party to the  
 contractual provisions of the instrument and are derecognised in case of assets, when the contractual rights under  
 the instrument are realised, expired or surrendered and in case of liability, when the obligation is discharged,  
 cancelled or expired.

3.16.6. Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities
 A financial asset and a financial liability is offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position, if the 
 Company has the enforceable legal right to set off the transaction and also intends either to settle on net basis or to 
 realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. Income and expense arising from such assets and liabilities are 
 also offset accordingly.
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3.16.7. Impairment of financial assets
 A financial asset is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any objective evidence that it is
 impaired. A financial asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicates that one or more events have 
 had a negative effect of the estimated future cash flows of that asset.

3.16.8. Revenue
 Revenue is recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the 
 revenue can be measured reliably. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
 receivable, excluding discounts, rebates and government levies, if any. The following recognition criteria must be met 
 before revenue is recognised:

 Revenues from berth operations are recognised when service is rendered;
 Profit on deposits / saving accounts are recognised on time proportion basis; and
 Gain on redemption of investments is recognised at the time of redemption.

4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

 Operating fixed assets 
 Capital work-in-progress

4.1      2,335,855
4.2  164,282
  2,500,137

1,901,008
207,442

2,108,450

Note ------------ (Rs in thousands) ------------

December 31,
2019

December 31,
2018
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4.1. Operating fixed assets:
December 31, 2019

Accumulated Depreciation  

------------------------------------------------- -------------------------------------------------(Rs in thousands) 

 Cost

Disposals Disposals

Additions /
*transfers

from capital
work-in-
progress

Written
down value

as at
December 31,

2019

Deprec-
iation
rate 
per

annum

%

Charge
for the 

year 
(note 4.1.3)

As at
December 31,

2019

As at
January 01,

2019

As at
December 31,

2019

As at
January 01,

2019

Leasehold land & 
  building (note 4.1.2)

Leasehold 
  Improvements

Container / terminal 
  handling / workshop
  equipment**

Port power generation

Vehicles

247,547

1,851,344

5,311,830

566,410

22,555

247,547

1,879,472

5,469,035

575,946

20,097

145,293

1,434,456

3,759,464

406,127

14,466

23,152

114,039

416,310

51,191

2,582

168,445

1,548,495

4,175,774

457,318

14,590

79,102

330,977

1,293,261

118,628

5,507

8.33

5-20

5-20

5-10

20

-

19,510
* 8,618

24,977
* 132,228

 -
* 9,536

-

-

-

-
 

-

(2,458)

-

-

-
 

-

(2,458)

Computers and other
    equipment

Furniture and fixtures

         
         Total

319,866

49,600

8,369,152

8,369,152

316,692 

51,561

8,560,350

8,560,350

233,944

39,547

6,033,297

6,033,297

40,415

4,351

652,040

652,040

252,008

42,712

6,659,342

6,659,342

64,684

8,849

1,901,008

1,901,008

10-33.33

10-33.33

9,255
* 10,808

-
*3,400

53,742
* 164,590

218,332

(23,237)

(1,439)

(27,134)

(27,134)

(22,351)

(1,186)

(25,995)

(25,995)

December 31, 2018
Accumulated Depreciation   Cost

Disposals Disposals

Additions /
*transfers

from capital
work-in-
progress

Written
down value

as at
December 31,

2018

Deprec-
iation
rate 
per

annum

%

Charge
for the 

year 
(note 4.1.3)

As at
December 31,

2018

As at
January 01,

2018

As at
December 31,

2018

As at
January 01,

2018

Leasehold land & 
  building (note 4.1.2)

Leasehold 
  Improvements

Container / terminal 
  handling / workshop
  equipment**

Port power generation

Vehicles

Computers and other
    equipment

Furniture and fixtures

         
         Total

247,547

1,829,196

5,247,815

566,269

19,884

283,333

64,100

8,258,144

8,258,144

247,547

1,851,344

5,311,830

566,410

22,555

319,866 

49,600

8,369,152

8,369,152

122,141

1,320,690

3,364,457

353,292

13,463

192,464

49,390

5,415,897

5,415,897

23,152

113,766

397,766

52,835

2,015

45,563

4,802

639,899

639,899

145,293

1,434,456

3,759,464

406,127

14,466

233,944

39,547

6,033,297

6,033,297

102,254

416,888

1,552,366

160,283

8,089

85,922

10,053

2,335,855

2,335,855

8.33

5-20

5-20

5-10

20

10-33.33

10-33.33

-

4,747
*17,401

18,100
*49,691

 141

3,683

27,527
*13,089

-
*164

54,198
*80,345
134,543

-

-

(3,776)

-

(1,012)

(4,083)

(14,664)

(23,535)

(23,535)

-

-

(2,759)
 

-

(1,012)

(4,083)

(14,645)

(22,499)

(22,499)

------------------------------------------------- -------------------------------------------------(Rs in thousands) 

* Transfers from capital work-in-progress
** Includes stand-by equipment having written down value of Rs 21.51 million

* Transfers from capital work-in-progress
** Includes stand-by equipment having written down value of Rs 29.22 million
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4.1.1. Disposals of operating fixed assets:

4.1.2. This includes a leasehold land in the name of the Company having written down value of Rs 13.41 million (2018: Rs 17.2  
 million) and area of approximately 6 by 6 acres situated at Deh Mai Gharhi, Tappo Manghopir, Gadap Town, Karachi  
 which is depreciated over the lease term. 

4.2.2. This includes Rs 129.36 million in Container/terminal handling/workshop equipment and Rs 78.39 million in other assets 
 (2018: Rs 122.72 million in Container/terminal handling/workshop equipment and Rs 43.11 million in other assets).

Accumulated
depreciation

Particulars of
BuyerCost

Gain on
disposals-net

Written
down valueParticulars

Items having written down value
of less than Rs. 5,000,000/-
 2019

 2018

Mode of
Disposal

Sale
proceeds

27,134

23,535

25,995

22,499

1,139

1,036

3,058

1,166

1,919

130

Various Various

4.1.3. Depreciation charge for the year has been
        allocated as under:

 Cost of services
 Administrative expenses

4.2. Capital work-in-progress:

4.2.1. Movement:

 Opening balance
 Additions during the year
 Transferred to operating fixed assets
 Closing balance

575,909
63,990

639,899

78,797
165,830
(80,345)
164,282

586,836
65,204

652,040

164,282
207,750

(164,590)
207,442

18
19

4.2.2

4.2.3

4.2.3. Category wise breakup:        

 Leasehold improvements
 Container / terminal handling / workshop equipment
 Computers and other equipment
 Port power generation
 Furniture and fixtures

5. INTANGIBLES
 Intangible assets
 Intangible asset under development

 36,794 15,594
 118,307 121,166
 1,840 10,808
 50,234 13,314
 267 3,400
 207,442 164,282

5.1 70,632 29,228
 -    70,175
 70,632 99,403

Note ------------ (Rs in thousands) ------------

December 31,
2019

December 31,
2018

Note ------------ (Rs in thousands) ------------

December 31,
2019

December 31,
2018

----------------------------------------------- ------------------------(Rs in thousands) 
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5.2. Amortisation charge for the year has been
       allocated as under:
 
 Cost of services
 Administrative expenses

6. STORES, SPARE PARTS AND LOOSE  TOOLS - net
 Stores, spare parts and loose tools
 Fuel and lubricants

 Provision for obsolescence

7. TRADE DEBTS - net

 Unsecured
 Considered good 
 Considered doubtful

 Allowance for expected credit losses

22,143
2,460

24,603

434,524
22,079

456,603
(29,095)
427,508

438,165
1,475

439,640
(1,475)

438,165

12,638
1,404

14,042

482,100
20,942

503,042
(29,095)
473,947

419,206
1,475

420,681
(1,475)

419,206

18
19

7.1, 7.2, 7.3 & 7.4

December 31, 2019
Accumulated Amortization   Cost

Additions /
*Transfer

As at
December
31, 2019

As at
January 01,

2019

Charge
for the year 

(note 5.2)

As at
December
31, 2019

Computer software           

Project development 
  cost    

          Total

*     Transfers from Intangible assets under development

Written down
value as at
December
31, 2019

Amortisation
rate per
annum

%

As at
January
01, 2019

175,397

37,889

213,286

* 66,007

-

66,007

241,404

37,889

279,293

146,169

37,889

184,058

24,603

-

24,603

170,772

37,889

208,661

70,632

-

70,362

20-33.33

20

December 31, 2018
 Cost

Additions /
*Transfer

As at
December
31, 2018

As at
January 01,

2018

Charge
for the year 

(note 5.2)

As at
December
31, 2018

Computer software           

Project development 
  cost    

          Total

*     Transfers from Intangible assets under development

Written down
value as at
December
31, 2018

Amortisation
rate per
annum

%

As at
January
01, 2018

175,397

37,889

213,286

-

-

-

175,397

37,889

213,286

132,127

37,889

170,016

14,042

-

14,042

146,169

37,889

184,058

29,228

-

29,228

20-33.33

20

Accumulated Amortization  

------------------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------------------------(Rs in thousands) 

------------------------------------------------------------- ---------------------------------------------(Rs in thousands) 

5.1. Intangible assets:

Note ------------ (Rs in thousands) ------------

December 31,
2019

December 31,
2018
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7.2. Related parties represent Rs Nil (2018: Rs 3.13 million) due from Marine Services (Private) Limited, Rs 1.34 million (2018:  
 Rs 0.37 million) due from Premier Mercantile Services (Private) Limited, and Rs 1.08 million (2018: Rs 2.88 million) due  
 from Portlink International Services (Private) Limited.

7.3. The maximum amounts outstanding at the end of any month during the year from Marine Services (Private) Limited,  
 Premier Mercantile Services (Private) Limited and Portlink International Services (Private) Limited were Rs 7.73 million,  
 Rs 1.34 million and Rs 4.30 million respectively.

7.4. These are generally on a term ranging from 15 to 60 days.

8. ADVANCES

 Unsecured, considered good
 Suppliers and contractors
 Employees

9. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND 
     OTHER RECEIVABLES

       Deposits
       Prepayments

       Other Receivables - considered good
       Sales tax receivable 
       Insurance claim receivable
       Accrued interest
       Receivable from tax authorities
       Others

10. SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS – net
       Amortised cost 
       Certificate of investments (COIs)
       Allowance for expected credit losses

 4,917 31,949
 1,472 3,466
 6,389 35,415

 5,480 5,480
 76,371 60,092

 15,478 16,715
 15,347 11,489
 322 10
16.1.3 100,000 100,000
 6,119 10,896
 137,266 139,110
 219,117 204,682

10.1 43,000 43,000
 (43,000) (43,000)
 - -

December 31,
2019

-------- (Rs in thousands) -------Note

December 31,
2018

7.1. The aging of unimpaired trade debts as at December 31 is as follows:

Past due but not impaired

 Related parties
 Other than related 
       parties
            2019

 Related parties
 Other than related 
       parties
            2018

2,423

435,742
438,165

6,377

412,829
419,206

 -

397,067
397,067

2,854

199,997
202,851

2,423

29,327
31,750

3,523

212,832
216,355

-

2,102
2,102

-

-
-

-

7,246
7,246

-

-
-

Total

Neither
past

due nor
impaired

Within
90 days

91 to 180
days

Over 180
days

---------------------------------------- (Rs in thousands) ----------------------------------------
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11. CASH AND BANK BALANCES
     With banks in:
         current accounts
         savings accounts 

     Cash and pay orders in hand

Ordinary shares of Rs 10/-   each
Preference shares of Rs 10/-  each

12. SHARE CAPITAL

12.1. Authorised capital

182,000,000
18,000,000

200,000,000

182,000,000
18,000,000

200,000,000

1,820,000
180,000

2,000,000

1,820,000
180,000

2,000,000

11.1. These carry profit at rates ranging from 5.94 to 12.85 percent (2018: 3.75 to 9.30 percent) per annum.

11.2. As at December 31, 2019, the Company has unutilised short-term running finance facility under markup arrangements  
 aggregating Rs 300 million (2018: Rs 300 million) available from Faysal Bank Limited carrying mark-up rate based on 6  
 months KIBOR as benchmark rate plus 30 basis points (2018: 6 months KIBOR plus 30 basis points). This facility is 
 secured against first pari passu hypothecation charge on all present and future current assets amounting to
 Rs 620 million (2018: Rs 620 million).

12.2.1. Represent shares issued in consideration for mobile harbour cranes, port equipment and a vehicle.

12.2.2. The voting rights are in proportion to shareholding of the shareholders.

 67,555 125,691
11.1 1,245,584 297,802
 1,313,139 423,493
 2,496 1,846
 1,315,635 425,339

December 31,
2019

-------- (Number of shares) -------

December 31,
2018

December 31,
2019

-------- (Rs in thousands) -------

December 31,
2018

Note

December 31,
2019

December 31,
2018

------------ (Rs in thousands) ------------

10.1. Represents investment in COIs of Saudi Pak Leasing Company (the investee Company). The investee Company made  
 default in repayment against COIs in August 2009 due to serious financial and liquidity crunch reportedly being faced  
 by it. Due to uncertainties involved, the Company has carried impairment provision in these financial statements, as a  
 matter of prudence.

Ordinary shares of  Rs 10/- 
each 
issued for cash               
issued as bonus shares
issued for consideration 
    other than cash                

12.2. Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital

63,761,200
33,352,352

12,039,600
109,153,152

63,761,200
33,352,352

12,039,600
109,153,152

 637,612 637,612
 333,524 333,524

                 12.2.1 120,396 120,396
 1,091,532 1,091,532

December 31,
2019

-------- (Number of shares) -------

December 31,
2018

Note ------------ (Rs in thousands) ------------

December 31,
2019

December 31,
2018
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12.2.3. As of the reporting date, 
        following are the major shareholders  
        (directly and indirectly) of the Company:

 ICTSI Mauritius Limited – the Parent Company 
       64.54 percent (2018: 64.54 percent)

 Premier Mercantile Services (Private) Limited
        21.23 percent (2018: 21.23 percent)

12.3. Reserves
 Capital reserve 
 Capital redemption reserve fund 

 Revenue reserve
 Unappropriated profits

12.3.1. The capital redemption reserve fund can be utilised by the Company in accordance with the provisions of the Companies  
 Act, 2017 and any applicable regulations therein.

12.3.2. The shareholders are entitled to receive all distributions including dividends and other entitlements in the form of bonus  
 and right shares as and when declared by the Company.

 70,442,082 70,442,082

  
 23,174,829 23,174,829

12.3.1 180,000 180,000
   
  
12.3.2 1,572,198 1,028,427
 1,752,198 1,208,427

Note ------------ (Rs in thousands) ------------

December 31,
2019

December 31,
2018

13. DEFERRED TAXATION - net

 Credit / (debit) balances arising in respect of
     timing differences relating to:

     Accelerated tax depreciation and amortisation
     Provisions

14. LONG-TERM EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

 Opening balance
 Accrual made during the year

 Payments made during the year
 Closing balance

 204,345 323,257
 (117,017) (117,283)
 87,328 205,974

54,323
7,474

61,797
(3,926)
57,871

53,458
3,666

57,124
(2,801)
54,323

------------ (Rs in thousands) ------------

December 31,
2019

December 31,
2018
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15. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
 Trade creditors
 Technical services fee payable
 Staff related liabilities
 Payable to port authorities
 Accrued liabilities
 
 Other liabilities:
 Advances from customers
 Workers’ Welfare Fund 
 Sales tax payable 
 Others

15.1. Includes Rs 146.99 million (2018: Rs 148.38 million) payable to related parties.

16. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
16.1. Contingencies

16.1.1. The Trustees of the Port of Karachi (KPT) filed a civil suit 1201/2006 against the Company on September 13, 2006, in the 
 Honorable High Court of Sindh (HCS) claiming a sum of Rs 304.5 million along with the interest, as default payment of 
 wharfage and penalty thereon, for the alleged mis-declaration of the category of goods on the import of Ship to Shore 
 Cranes and Rubber Tyre Gantry Cranes in 2004.
 
 On April 24, 2017, HCS passed the judgment and decree in favor of the Company and ordered that KPT is not entitled to the 
 amount of wharfage charges claimed by it. On June 3, 2017, KPT filed an appeal 287/2017 against the aforesaid HCS’ 
 judgment before the Divisional Bench of HCS.
 
 Upon advice of the Company’s legal advisor, management believes that there is no merit in this claim and accordingly 
 no provision in respect of above has been made in the financial statements.

16.1.2. The Company has filed an interpleader civil suit 827/2007 on June 29, 2007 before HCS against the Deputy District  
 Officer, Excise and Taxation (DDO) and the Trustees of KPT in respect of demand raised by the DDO on the Company to
 pay property tax out of the Handling, Marshalling and Storage (HMS) charges payable to KPT amounting to Rs. 34.6 million 
 for the period from 2003 to 2007. In compliance with the Order of HCS, the Company deposited the amount with Nazir of 
 HCS, out of amount withheld by the Company from HMS charges billed by KPT.

 In 2014, another demand was made by the DDO amounting to Rs 96.1 million for the period 2008 to 2014. On an
 application filed by the Company for directions, HCS ordered for deposit of the aforementioned amount out of HMS 
 charges billed by KPT. The Company complied with the order of HCS. In 2015, HCS issued further orders directing the 
 Company to deposit the remaining HMS charges due and payable with Nazir of HCS in quarterly installments.
 Accordingly, the Company complied with the order of HCS. The amount deposited with Nazir of HCS is netted off with 
 the HMS payable to KPT.
 
 The decision of the suit is still pending and the Company's legal advisor believes that there may be no adverse 
 impli cation for depositing the payments due to KPT with Nazir of HCS in view of complying with the HCS’s order.
 Accordingly, no provision has been made in this respect in the financial statements.

16.1.3. While completing the audit proceedings for the tax year 2013, the Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR) 
 amended the deemed assessment of the Company by passing an order under section 122(1) of the Income Tax 
 Ordinance, 2001 and made certain disallowances / additions in the taxable income and raised an income tax demand of 
 Rs 130.4 million. The Company filed an appeal before the Commissioner Inland Revenue – Appeals (CIR-A) who partly 
 decided the appeal in favour of the Company. Consequently, the Company made the payment of Rs 100 million and 
 filed a second appeal before the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR), in respect of issues confirmed by the CIR (A), 
 which is now pending for adjudication.    

15.1
15.1

16.1.2
15.1

 
 

15.1

395,598
110,313
145,842
167,130
201,379

 
 

48,086
329,541

72,167
8,456

458,250
1,478,512

370,886
105,027
131,791
120,988
318,914

 
 

75,551
329,541

62,838
3,330

471,260
1,518,866

Note ------------ (Rs in thousands) ------------

December 31,
2019

December 31,
2018
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 The tax advisor of the Company is of the view that the issues involved in the appeal will be decided in favour of the 
 Company and accordingly, no provision in respect of excess demand raised by the DCIR has been made in the financial  
 statements.

16.1.4. In 2017, the Assistant Commissioner Sindh Revenue Board (AC-SRB) under Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011 raised a 
 demand of Rs 514.4 million along with penalty and default surcharge, for tax periods January 2013 to December 2014 on 
 exempt services provided by the Company. The Company filed an appeal with Commissioner Appeals - SRB which is 
 pending for hearing.

 The tax advisor of the Company is of the view that the Company has a strong defence and appeal will be decided in 
 favour of the Company. Accordingly, the Company has not made any provision in respect of the above demand in the 
 financial statements.

16.1.5. In 2017, the Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) amended the deemed assessment of the Company for 
 the tax year 2016 by passing an order under section 122(5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 and made certain 
 additions / disallowances to the taxable income and tax credits claimed by the Company and raised an income tax
 demand of Rs 222.2 million. The Company filed an appeal before the Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A) 
 who had decided the appeal partly in favor of the Company. Being aggrieved by the decision of CIR-A, the Company 
 as well as the tax department filed the appeals before Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) which are pending for 
 adjudication. The Company has also sought stay from HCS against the demand created by ACIR after appeal effect 
 proceedings. HCS vide its final order directed the ACIR not to take any coercive recovery measures till the finalization of 
 appeal before the ATIR which is pending adjudication.

 The tax advisor of the Company is of the view that the issues involved in the appeal will be decided in favor of the 
 Company. Accordingly, no provision in respect of excess demand raised by the ACIR has been made in the financial
 statements.

16.1.6. In 2019, ACIR amended the deemed assessment of the Company for the tax year 2018 by passing an order under section 
 122(5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 and made certain additions/disallowance to the taxable income and tax 
 credits claimed by the Company and raised an income tax demand of Rs. 537.247 million. The Company filed an appeal 
 before CIR-A which is pending for adjudication. The Company has also obtained stay from HCS against the demand 
 created by ACIR. HCS vide its interim order directed ACIR not to take any coercive recovery measures till the finalization of
 appeal before the CIR-A which is pending adjudication.

 The tax advisor of the Company is of the view that the issues involved in the appeal will be decided in favor of  the
 Company. Accordingly, no provision in respect of the aforementioned demand raised by ACIR has been made in the 
 financial statements.

16.1.7. In 2019, ACIR amended the deemed assessment of the Company for the tax year 2014 by passing an order under section 
 122(5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 and made certain additions/disallowance to the taxable income and tax 
 credits claimed by the Company and raised an income tax demand of Rs. 451.828 million. The Company filed an appeal 
 before CIR-A which is pending for adjudication. The Company has also obtained stay from CIR-A against the demand
 created by ACIR. CIR-A vide its interim order directed ACIR not to take any coercive recovery measures till the
 finalization of appeal before the CIR-A which is pending adjudication.

 The tax advisor of the Company is of the view that the issues involved in the appeal will be decided in favor of  the 
 Company. Accordingly, no provision in respect of the aforementioned demand raised by ACIR has been made in the 
 financial statements. 

16.1.8. Section 14A of Customs Act, 1969 was amended through Finance Act 2013 effective from July 01, 2013.According to 
 which port authorities shall provide at its own cost adequate security and accommodation to customs staff for
 residential purposes, offices, examination charges, detention and storage of goods and for other departmental
 requirements to be determined by the Collector of Customs and shall pay utility bills, rent and taxes in respect of such 
 accommodation.

 The Company through its legal advisor filed a joint petition with other terminal operators and challenged the applicability
 of the aforementioned amendment in law before HCS which granted an interim order in favour of the terminals in 
 November 2013. In January 2020, HCS dismissed the joint petition, however, suspended  the judgment for filling an 
 appeal before the Supreme Court of Pakistan. 
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 The Company has filed a joint Civil Appeal with other terminal operators challenging the impugned HCS Judgement 
 before the Supreme Court of Pakistan. The decision of the appeal is pending. The Company and its legal advisors are of 
 the opinion that the Company has a reasonable chance of success in this case. 

16.1.9. The Company is defending various suits, other than those disclosed above, filed against it in various courts in Pakistan. The 
 Company’s management is confident, based on the advice of its legal advisors, that these suits will be decided in the 
 Company's favour.

16.2. Commitments

16.2.1. Commitments for capital expenditure

16.2.2. Outstanding letters of guarantees

16.2.3. Outstanding letters of credit

  Utilised
  Unutilised

 30,198 26,227

 144,354 144,354
  

   41,572 19,106
 258,428 280,894

December 31,
2019

-------- (Rs in thousands) -------

December 31,
2018

16.2.4. Commitments in respect of Handling, Marshalling and 
 Storage charges to the Karachi Port Trust (KPT) 
 
    Not later than one year
    Later than one year but not later than five years

17. REVENUE - net

 Gross revenue
 Sales tax

      88,368
  801,356
  889,724

17.1 8,721,976 9,159,640
17.1 (794,847) (909,263)
 7,927,129 8,250,377

90,494
616,200
706,694

17.1 Includes Rs 68.78 million (2018: Rs 84.52 million) collected from customers on behalf of KPT in respect of sales tax on
 wharfage charges.

18. COST OF SERVICES
 Salaries, wages and other benefits 
 Provident fund contribution
 Staff training
 Terminal handling and services
 Royalty to KPT 
 Handling, Marshalling and Storage charges
 Fuel and power
 Stores, spares and other maintenance charges
 Technical services fee
 Rent, rates and taxes
 Insurance
 Software maintenance charges
 Office maintenance
 Travelling, conveyance and vehicle running expenses
 Communication, printing and stationery
 Utilities
 Depreciation and amortisation
 Others

16.1.2

18.1

4.1.3 & 5.2

556,502
16,531

4,824
459,573
835,611
180,684
626,922
281,319
466,302
145,114
133,256

90,183
26,548
12,780

5,150
1,321

608,979
16,638

4,468,237

565,513
16,250

3,337
561,023
776,945
176,149
628,916
270,591
485,316
150,894
120,525

86,242
25,467
13,375

6,539
5,279

588,547
18,475

4,499,383

Note

Note

------------ (Rs in thousands) ------------

December 31,
2019

December 31,
2018
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18.1. Represents charges for technical services provided by ICTSI Mauritius Limited to the Company for advising on continuous  
 improvement of the terminal operations, training of key personnel and risk management services.

20.1. Includes Rs 10.57 million (2018: Rs Nil) paid to The Indus Hospital and Rs Nil (2018: Rs 1.80 million) paid to Rabia Azeem  
 Trust. None of the directors or their spouses have any interest in any donee’s fund to which donation was made in the  
 current year. 

19.1

4.1.3 & 5.2

20.1

19. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
 Salaries, wages and other benefits 
 Provident fund contribution
 Travelling, conveyance and vehicle 
       running expenses
 Legal and professional charges
 Auditors’ remuneration
 Security expenses
 Insurance
 Office maintenance
 Advertising and public relations
 Communication, printing and stationery
 Utilities
 Depreciation and amortisation
 Fees and subscription
 Others

19.1. Auditors' remuneration
 Fee for statutory audit
 Tax advisory services
 Limited scope reviews, group reporting package, 
       and various certifications
 Out of pocket expenses

20. OTHER EXPENSES
 Donations
 Exchange loss - net

   

Note ------------ (Rs in thousands) ------------

December 31,
2019

December 31,
2018

224,623
7,060

24,382
15,243

7,115
15,624
12,478
28,488
14,191
16,385

4,740
65,394

6,179
36,769

478,671

1,950
2,285

1,922
958

7,115

1,804
5,584
7,388

220,727
7,465

24,474
13,613

9,040
18,991
14,947
54,242
14,592
16,482

5,302
67,664
12,920
38,225

518,684

2,080
3,346

2,571
1,043
9,040

11,120
9,599

20,719

 483 883
 6 177
 489 1,060

21. FINANCE COST

 Bank charges
 Markup on running finance facility

------------ (Rs in thousands) ------------

December 31,
2019

December 31,
2018
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 80,257 17,611
  
  
 1,919 130
 9,875 8,569
 11,794 8,699
 92,051 26,310

23.1 992,215 1,146,024
 (118,646) (126,153)
23.1 75 135,389
23.2 873,644 1,155,260

22. OTHER INCOME
 Income from financial assets
 Markup on savings accounts

 Income from non-financial assets
  Gain on disposals of operating fixed assets - net
 Others

23. TAXATION
 Current 
 Deferred
 Prior

23.1. Includes super tax of Rs Nil (2018: Rs 208.8 million).

23.2. Section 5A of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 was revised by the Finance Act, 2018 according to the revision, tax at the  
 rate of 5 percent shall be payable on the accounting profits before tax of every public company other than a scheduled  
 bank and modaraba if at least 20% of its after tax profits are not distributed as dividend through cash within six months  
 of the end of the tax year. 

 As explained in note 33, the Board of Directors in their meeting held on February 24, 2020 have recommended sufficient  
 cash dividend for the year ended December 31, 2019 for the approval of shareholders in forth coming Annual General  
 Meeting. This is in addition to the interim dividends of Rs 10.50 per ordinary share declared during the year which together  
 meets the above stated requirement. Accordingly, no provision for tax on undistributed profits has been recognised in the  
 financial statements.

Note ------------ (Rs in thousands) ------------

December 31,
2019

December 31,
2018

23.3. Relationship between tax expense and 
     accounting profit:
 Profit before taxation  

 Tax at the applicable tax rate of 29 percent 
     (2018: 29 percent)
 Net effect of income tax provision relating to prior years
 Effect of super tax relating to current year
 Effect of change in rate of deferred tax
 Others

 Average effective tax rate 29% (2018: 35%)

24. EARNINGS PER ORDINARY SHARE - basic and diluted

 Profit after taxation

 Weighted average ordinary shares in issue during the year

 Earnings per share                                                  

December 31,
2019

  -------- (Rs in thousands) -------

December 31,
2018

 3,011,051 3,290,185

 873,205 954,153
 75 135,389
 - 73,971
 - (11,071)
 364 2,818
 873,644 1,155,260

 2,137,407 2,134,925

 109,153,152 109,153,152

 19.58       19.56          

  -------- (No of shares) -------

  -------- (Rupees) -------

Pakistan International Container Terminal Limited 57

Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended December 31, 2019

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
 The main risks arising from the Company’s financial instruments are credit risk, liquidity risk, foreign currency risk,  
 interest rate risk and equity price risk. No changes made to the objectives and policies during the year ended December  
 31, 2019. The Board of Directors review and agree policies for managing each of these risks which are summarised below.

25.1. Credit Risk
 Credit risk is the risk which arises with the possibility that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge its  
 obligation and cause the other party to incur a financial loss. The Company attempts to control credit risk by monitoring  
 credit exposures, limiting transactions with specific counterparties and continually assessing the creditworthiness of  
 counterparties.

 Concentrations of credit risk arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities or have  
 similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes  
 in economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations of credit risk indicate the relative sensitivity of the Company’s  
 performance to developments affecting a particular industry.

 The Company is exposed to credit risk on long-term deposits, trade debts, advances to employees, deposits, other
 receivables and bank balances. The Company seeks to minimise the credit risk exposure by dealing only to 
 customers considered credit worthy and obtaining securities where applicable. The maximum exposure to credit risk on 
 the financial assets of the Company at the reporting date is:

 At amortised cost - unsecured
 Long-term deposits
 Advances to employees
 Trade debts - net
 Deposits and other receivables
 Bank balances

 10,424 10,424
 1,472 3,466
 438,165 419,206
 27,268 27,875
 1,313,139 423,493
 1,790,468 884,464

December 31,
2019

-------- (Rs in thousands) -------

December 31,
2018

Carrying Values

 Quality of financial assets
 The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to external 
 credit ratings or the historical information about counter party default rates as shown below:

25.2. Liquidity Risk
 Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Company  
 applies the prudent risk management policies by maintaining sufficient cash and bank balances and by keeping
 committed credit lines. 

December 31,
2019

-------- (Rs in thousands) -------

December 31,
2018

Carrying Values

25.1.1. Trade debts
 Customers with no defaults in the past one year
 Customers with some defaults in past one year 
        which have been fully recovered

25.1.2. Cash with Banks
 A1
 A1+

 438,165 419,206

 - -
 438,165 419,206

 10,664 4,934
 1,302,475 418,559
 1,313,139 423,493
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 The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities at the following reporting dates:

25.3. Foreign Currency Risk

 Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of financial assets or financial liabilities will fluctuate due to a change in  
 foreign exchange rates. It arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due to transactions in foreign currency. The  
 Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk on the following US Dollars denominated trade and other payables:

25.4. Interest rate risk
 Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of  
 changes in market interest rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of change in market interest rates relates primarily  
 to the Company's financing obligations with floating interest rates. However, as of the reporting date the Company does  
 not have any financing obligations with floating interest rates.

25.5. Equity price risk
 Equity price risk is the risk of loss arising from movements in prices of equity instruments. The Company is not exposed to  
 any equity price risk, as the Company does not have any investment in equity shares as at the reporting date.

 At amortised cost

 Trade and other payables
 December 31, 2019

 At amortised cost

 Trade and other payables
 December 31, 2018

755,601
755,601

681,206
681,206

370,886
370,886

395,598
395,598

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

1,126,487
1,126,487

1,076,804
1,076,804

------------------------------------- (Rs in thousands) -------------------------------------

On
demand

Less than 
3 months

3 to 12
months

1 to 5 
Years

> 5
years Total

 Trade and other payables

 The following significant exchange rate has been applied 
     at the reporting dates:

     Pakistani Rupee to US Dollars

 December 31, 2019

 December 31, 2018

 The foreign currency exposure is adequately covered as the majority of the Company’s billing is determined in US dollars  
 which is converted into rupees at the exchange rate prevailing at the transaction date.

 The following figures demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in exchange rates, with all other  
 variables held constant, of the Company’s profit before tax:

 449,135 901,965
 

 154.87 139.80

  
 ± 5% ± 3,478

 ± 5% ± 6,305

December 31,
2019

--------------- (US dollars) ---------------

December 31,
2018

December 31,
2019

--------------- (Rupees) ---------------

December 31,
2018

Change in 
Exchange rates

Effect on profit
 before tax 

(Rs in thousands)
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25.6. Capital risk management
 The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to maintain healthy capital ratios, strong credit rating and  
 optimal capital structures in order to ensure ample availability of finance for its existing and potential investment  
 projects, to maximise shareholder value and reduce the cost of capital.

 The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustment to it, in light of changes in economic conditions. In  
 order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amounts of dividends paid to shareholders,  
 return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.

 The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. Net debt is  
 calculated as total loans less cash and bank balances. Capital signifies equity as shown in the statement of financial  
 position plus net debt. The gearing ratio of the Company as at December 31, 2019 is Nil (December 31, 2018: Nil).

26. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
 Financial instruments comprise of financial assets and financial liabilities. Financial assets consist of bank balances,  
 advances, trade deposits, other receivables and short-term investments. Financial liabilities consist of trade and other  
 payables. The fair values of financial instruments are not materially different from their carrying values. 

 The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by  
 valuation technique:

 Level 1:  Fair value measurements using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

 Level 2: Fair value measurements using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for  
  the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).
  
 Level 3: Fair value measurements using inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data  
  (i.e. unobservable inputs).
 
 As of the reporting date, the Company does not have any financial assets carried at fair value that required categorisation  
 in Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3.

27. REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

27.1. The aggregate amount, charged in the financial statements for the year, is as follows:

27.2. The Chief Executive and certain Executives of the Company were also provided with the free use of Company maintained  
 cars, club memberships, medical and other benefits in accordance with their terms of service.

 Managerial 
       remuneration 
 Company’s 
       contribution to 
       provident fund
 Bonus 
 Fee for attending 
       Meetings

  Number

35,178

1,634
18,880

-
55,692

1

-

-
-

7,796
7,796

7

111,868

5,438
44,934

-
162,240

28

23,888

1,299
7,000

-
32,187

1

-

-
-

699
699

7

105,129

5,112
38,870

-
149,111

29

------------------------------------- (Rs in thousands) -------------------------------------

Chief
Executive

December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
Directors /
Chairman

(Non-
Executive) Executives

Chief
Executive

Directors /
Chairman

(Non-
Executive) Executives
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28. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
 The related parties include the Parent Company, associated companies, entities having directors in common with the  
 Company, Staff Provident Fund, directors and other key management personnel. Detail of related parties with whom the  
 Company has entered into transactions with or has arrangement / agreement in place during the year along with  
 relationship and transactions with related parties, other than those which have been disclosed elsewhere in these
 financial statements, are as follows:

28.1. Name and nature of relationship
 a) Parent Company
  ICTSI Mauritius Limited - 64.54% shares (directly and indirectly) held in the Company.

 b) Associated Companies due to significant influence
  Premier Mercantile Services (Private) Limited – 21.23% shares held in the Company 
  Aeolina Investments Limited – 15.71% shares held in the Company.

 c) Associated Companies/Undertakings due to common directorship with nil shareholding
  Marine Services (Private) Limited
  Port Link International (Private) Limited
  Marine International Container Terminal (Private) Limited
  Staff Provident Fund of the Company

 d) Associated companies, subsidiaries, joint ventures or holding companies 
  incorporated outside Pakistan
  ICTSI Mauritius Limited - a company incorporated in Mauritius 
  Aeolina Investments Limited - a company incorporated in British Virgin Islands

28.3. Amounts due from and due to related parties, amount relating to remuneration of the Chief Executive and Directors are  
 disclosed in the relevant notes to these financial statements.

28.4. All the transactions with related parties are entered into at agreed terms duly approved by the Board of Directors of the  
 Company.

28.2 Transactions with related parties

 Parent Company
 Technical services fee
 Dividends
 
 Associated companies / other related parties

 Terminal handling services and rent
 Revenue from container handling
 Traveling expenses
 Donations
 Dividends

 Key management personnel 

 Managerial Remuneration
 Company’s contribution to provident fund

466,302
766,734

334,510
38,317

-
-

600,147

210,860
7,072

485,316
1,046,645

462,699
49,829

527
1,800

819,416

174,886
6,411

18.1

Note ------------ (Rs in thousands) ------------

December 31,
2019

December 31,
2018

Pakistan International Container Terminal Limited 61

Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended December 31, 2019

29. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
 Profit before taxation
 Adjustments for non-cash items:
     Depreciation and amortisation
     Accrual for long-term employee benefits
     Exchange loss - net
     Finance cost
     Markup on savings accounts
     Gain on disposals of operating fixed assets - net

 Operating profit before working capital changes

4.1.3 & 5.2
14
20
21
22
22

3,011,051
 

676,643
7,474
9,599

489
(80,257)

(1,919)
612,029

3,623,080

3,290,185
 

653,941
3,666
5,584
1,060

(17,611)
(130)

646,510
3,936,695

Note ------------ (Rs in thousands) ------------

December 31,
2019

December 31,
2018

 Decrease / (increase) in current assets 

 Stores, spare parts and loose tools - net 
 Trade debts - net 
 Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables

 Increase in current liabilities
 Trade and other payables

 Cash generated from operations

30. PROVIDENT FUND
 Investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of the section 218 of the
 Companies Act, 2017 and the conditions specified thereunder.

 46,439 35,311
 (18,959) (83,292)
 14,903 (43,202)
 42,383 (91,183)

 30,755 85,585

 3,696,218 3,931,097

31. NUMBER OF PERSONS EMPLOYED
 Persons employed as of 

 Average persons employed during the year

32. DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE
 These financial statements have been authorised for issue on February 24, 2020 by the Board of Directors of the
 Company.

33. NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE
 The Board of Directors in their board meeting, held on February 24, 2020, have recommended a final cash dividend of
 Rs 7.5 per ordinary share amounting to Rs 818.649 million for the year ended December 31, 2019. The adjustment for  
 this dividend will be incorporated in the subsequent financial statements of the Company.

34. EXEMPTION FROM APPLICABILITY OF IFRIC 12 “SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENTS”
 As explained in note 2.1, the required disclosure is as follows:

 Under IFRIC-12, the consideration required to be made by operator (the Company) for the right to use the asset is to be  
 accounted for as an intangible asset under IAS-38 “Intangible Assets”. If the Company had to follow IFRIC-12, the effect  
 on the financial statements would be as follows:

 782 855
  
 797 876

December 31,
2019

---------------- (Number) ----------------

December 31,
2018
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 Reclassification from property, plant and equipment
       (including CWIP) to intangible assets (Port 
       Concession Rights) – written down value

 Reclassification from spares to intangible assets

 Recognition of intangible assets (Port Concession
       Rights) on account of handling and marshalling
       charges (HMS)

 Recognition of present value of concession liability 
       on account of intangibles (HMS)

 Interest expense for the year on account of
       intangibles (HMS)

 Amortisation expense for the year on account of   
        intangibles (HMS)

 Amortisation expense for the year on account of
      concession assets (PPE and spares)

 Increase in profit before tax for the year on account 
  of reversal of HMS

 1,271,774 1,431,486
  
 31,855 33,844
  

 301,048 390,445

 624,258 766,468
  

 42,156 49,049
  

 86,014 86,014
  

 314,693 295,364
  

 180,684 176,149

December 31,
2019

------------ (Rs in thousands) ------------

December 31,
2018

35. GENERAL

35.1. Amounts have been rounded off to the nearest thousand rupees unless otherwise stated. 
35.2. The handling capacity of the Company is indeterminable because it depends on certain variables such as dwell time of  
 containers, availability of external yards and type of containers. The containers handled by the Company were
 according to the market demand.

Chief Executive Officer Director

Chief Financial Officer
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848
461
714
202
21
7
3
1
1
1
2
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1

2270

  21,899 
  114,341 
  548,468 
  440,946 
  161,282 

  91,740 
  47,056 
  29,520 
  36,000 
  43,200 
  99,940 
  63,363 
  94,000 

  276,665 
  371,200 

  2,235,083 
  11,631,938 
  17,155,639 
  23,174,829 
  52,516,043

  109,153,152 

1
101
501

1001
5001

10001
15001
25001
35001
40001
45001
60001
90001

275001
370001

2235001
11630001
17155001
23170001
52515001

100
500

1000
5000

10000
15000
20000
30000
40000
45000
50000
65000
95000

280000
375000

2240000
11635000
17160000
23175000
52520000

No. of Shareholders  Shareholdings
From To

Total Shares Held  

Directors, Chief Executive Officer and their spouse(s) and minor children
Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties
NIT and ICP
Banks, development finance institutions, non-banking financial institutions
Insurance Companies
Modarabas and Mutual funds
General Public
a. Local
b. Foreign
Foreign Companies
Joint Stock Companies
Trust
Executives

Share holders holding 10% or more

  2 
  3 
  -   
  1 
  -   
1

 
 1,546 

  692 
  6 

  16 
  1 
  2 

  2,270

4

  5,000 
  92,846,511 

  -   
  720 

  -   
  1,100 

  
1,617,276 
  427,761 

  13,870,169 
  381,666 

  8 
  2,941

  109,153,152 

  104,478,449 

0
85

0
0
0
0

1
0

13
0
0
1

100

95.72

Categories of Shareholders  Number of
 Shareholders  

 Total Shares
held  Percentage 
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Directors, Chief Executive Officer and their spouse(s) and minor children
Sharique Azim Siddiqui
Aasim Azim Siddiqui

Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties
Aeolina Investments
ICTSI Mauritius Limited
Premier Mercantile Services (Private) Limited

NIT and ICP

Banks, development finance institutions, non-banking
financial institutions

Insurance Companies

Modarabas and Mutual funds
B.R.R. Guardian Modaraba

General Public
a. Local
b. Foreign

Foreign Companies

Joint Stock Companies

Trust

Executives

  2

3

-

1

- 

1

1546
692

6

16

1

2
2270

500
4,500

   
  17,155,639 
  52,516,043 
  23,174,829 

-

720

-

1,100

  1,617,276 
  427,761 

  13,870,169 

  381,666 

  8 

  2,941
  109,153,152  

0.00 
0.00

   
  15.72 
  48.11 
  21.23

-

0.00

-

0.00

  1.48 
  0.39

  12.71 

  0.35 

  0.00 

  0.00
  100.00  

Categories of Shareholders  Number of
 Shareholders  

 Total Shares
held  Percentage 

ICTSI Mauritius Limited 
Premier Mercantile Services (Private) Limited 
Aeolina Investments 
EFG Private Bank Limited 

Details of Purchase/Sale of Shares By Directors, CEO, CFO, Company Secretary and
their spouses or minor children during Year Ended December 31, 2019

  52,516,043 
  23,174,829 
  17,155,639 
  11,631,938

  48.11 
  21.23 
  15.72 
  10.66 

Share holders holding 5% or more  Shares Held Percentage 

Name Date of
PurchaseDesignation No of Shares

Purchased

N/AN/A N/ANone
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Notice is hereby given that the Nineteenth (19th) Annual General Meeting of the members of Pakistan International Container Terminal Limited 
(“Company”) will be held on Wednesday, March 25, 2020 at 11:00 a.m., at Auditorium Hall, the institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan, 
Chartered Accountants Avenue, Clifton, Karachi, to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To confirm the minutes of the 18th Annual General Meeting held on April 29, 2019.

2. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2019 together with
 the Directors’ Report, Chairman’s Review Report and Auditors' Report thereon.

3. To appoint Auditors and fix their remuneration for the financial year ending December 31, 2020. The present auditors EY Ford Rhodes, 
 Chartered Accountants, are retiring and being eligible have offered themselves for reappointment.

4. To consider, declare and approve the final cash dividend of Rs. 7.5/- per ordinary share of the Company, as recommended  by the Board of 
 Directors, in addition to the interim cash dividend of Rs. 10.5/- per ordinary share already paid during 2019, there by making a total cash 
 dividend of Rs. 18/- per ordinary share for the year ended December 31, 2019.

ANY OTHER BUSINESS:
5. To transact any other business as may be placed before the meeting with the permission of the Chair.

By the order of the Board

Adil Siddique
Company Secretary

Karachi: March 4, 2020

NOTES
CLOSURE OF SHARE TRANSFER BOOKS
The share transfer books of the company will remain closed from March 19, 2020 to March 25, 2020 (both days inclusive) when no transfer of shares 
will be accepted for registration. Transfers in good order, received at the office of Company’s Share Registrar, “M/s. CDC Share Registrar Services 
Limited, CDC House, 99-B, Block ‘B’, SMCHS, Main Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi – 74400”, by the close of business on March 18, 2020 will be treated in 
time for the purpose of ascertaining the entitlement of transferees for payment of final dividend and to attend, speak and vote at the Annual 
General Meeting.

PARTICIPATION IN THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
A Member entitled to attend, speak and vote at the above  meeting is entitled to appoint another person as his/her proxy to attend, speak and vote 
instead of him/her and a proxy so appointed shall have such rights, as respects attending, speaking and voting at the above  meeting as are available 
to the Member.

CDC Account Holders will further have to follow the guidelines as laid down in Circular No. 1 dated January 26, 2000 issued by the Securities and 
Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

Duly completed, signed and stamped instrument of proxy (as enclosed) and the other authority under which it is signed, or anotarially certified copy 
thereof, in order to be valid, must be lodged with the Company Secretary at the Registered Office of the Company (Berths 6-9, East Wharf, Karachi Port, 
Karachi) not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting. In calculating the aforesaid period of 48 hours no account shall be taken of any 
part of the day that is not a working day. The proxy need not be a Member of the Company.

A. FOR ATTENDING THE MEETING
 In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder shall authenticate his / her identity  by showing his / her valid 
  original Computerised National Identity Card (CNIC) or original passport at the time of attending the meeting.

  In case of a corporate entity/trust, the Board of Directors’/Trustees’ resolution / power of attorney with specimen signature of 
  the representative/nominee shall be produced at the time of the meeting.

  The members registered on CDC are also requested to bring their particulars, I.D. numbers and account numbers in CDS.

B. FOR APPOINTING PROXIES 
 In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder shall submit the duly completed and stamped proxy form accordingly.
 
 The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers shall be mentioned on the form. The 
 proxy shall produce his / her original CNIC or original passport at the time of the meeting and copy of CNIC of Member of whom he/she 
 holds Proxy. Attested copies of valid CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners/members and the proxy shall be furnished with the 
 proxy form.

 In case of a corporate entity/trust, the Board of Directors’/Trustees’ resolution / power of attorney with specimen signature of the
 representative/nominee shall be submitted along with proxy form to the Company.a 
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C. POSTAL BALLOT
 Members can also demand a poll and exercise their right to vote by means of postal ballot i.e by post or through electronic mode subject 
 to the requirements of section 143 to section 145 of the Act and applicable clauses of Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations, 2018.

VIDEO CONFERENCE FACILITY
 As per sections 132 (2) and 134 (1) (b) of the Companies Act, 2017, together read with Circular No. 10 dated May 21, 2014 of the 
 Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan members can also avail video conference facility for attending the Annual General 
 Meeting in a city other than in which Annual General Meeting is being held. In this regard, please fill the following and submit 
 to registered address of the Company atleast seven (7) days before holding of the Annual General Meeting. If the Company 
 receives demand from members holding in aggregate 10% or more of the total paid up capital residing in a city, to participate in the 
 meeting through video conference atleast seven (7) days before hold ing of the Annual General Meeting, the Company will arrange 
 video conference facility in the city subject to availability of such facility in that city.

 “I/We, _____________________________ of __________________________, being a member of Pakistan International Container Terminal Limited,  
 holder of _____________________________ ordinary share(s) as per register Folio No./CDC account details________________________________
 hereby opt for video conference facility at ______________________________________.

 

 
 The Company will intimate members regarding venue of video conference facility at least 5 days before the date of Annual General Meeting along 
 with complete information necessary to enable them to access such facility.

 For any query / problem / information, the investors may contact the Company and / or the Share Registrar at the following phone Numbers and 
 email addresses:

MINUTES OF 18TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
Copies of the minutes of the 18th Annual General Meeting held on April 29, 2019 will be available to the Members on submission of written request.

MANDATORY PAYMENT OF CASH DIVIDEND THROUGH ELECTRONIC MODE AND SUBMISSION OF COPIES OF VALID CNIC 
& NATIONAL TAX NUMBER [NTN] CERTIFICATE
 The provisions of section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017 require the listed companies that any dividend payable in  cash 
 shall  only be paid through electronic mode directly into the bank account designated by the entit led shareholders.   
 Accordingly, the shareholders holding physical shares are requested to provide the information on a Dividend mandate form 
 (enclosed) to the Company’s Share Registrar at the address given herein above. In case of CDC account holders, the same information 
 should be provided directly to the CDS participant/ CDC Investor Account Services. The Company or its Share Registrar cannot act 
 on any request received directly from the Members holding shares in electronic form for any change of bank particulars or bank 
 mandates. The form is also available at the Company website i.e. www.pict.com.pk.

 The designated bank account details should be of the titleholder of the shares or Account title in Central Depository System.

 The Individual Members who have not yet submitted photocopy of their valid CNIC and Corporate Entities who have not yet
 submitted their NTN are once again reminded to have these details updated with their respective CDS participants, in case of 
 CDC account holders and to send the same at the earliest directly to the Company’s Share registrar at the address given herein 
 above, in case of physical shareholders. Please provide folio numbers with the copy of CNIC / NTN.

 In case of non-receipt of valid Bank details given herein above and copy of valid CNIC or NTN, the Company would withhold future 
 dividend payments to such shareholders as per the provisions of section 243(3) of the Companies Act, 2017 and Regulation 6 of the 
 Companies (Distribution of Dividends) Regulations, 2017.

FILER AND NON-FILER STATUS
 The Government of Pakistan has made certain amendments in Section 150 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 where by different 
 rates are prescribed for deduction of withholding tax on the amount of dividend paid by the companies. These rates are as per law.

 To enable the Company to make tax deduction on the amount of Cash Dividend, all the members whose names are not entered into 
 Active Tax-Payers List (ATL), despite the fact that they are filers are advised to make sure that their names are entered into ATL 
 available at e-portal of Federal Board of Revenue (“FBR”), before the date of commencement of book closure for cash dividend. The 
 Company as per the law shall apply 30% rate of withholding tax if the shareholder’s name with relevant details does not appear on the
 Active Tax Payer list as mentioned in the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

Signature of Member

PICT Shares Registrar 
CDC Share Registrar Services Limited, CDC House,
99-B, Block ‘B’, SMCHS, Main Shahra-e-Faisal,
Karachi. 
+92-21 111-111-500 
Info@cdcsrsl.com

PICT Investor Relations Department
Pakistan International Container Terminal Limited
Berth # 6-9, East Wharf, Karachi Port
Karachi.
+92 21 32855701-9 Ext. 2602;2606 
investor-relations@pict.com.pk

Pakistan International Container Terminal Limited 

Notice Of The 19th Annual General Meeting

67

 Withholding Tax exemption from the dividend income shall only be allowed if copy of valid tax exemption certificate is made available to the 
 Company’s share registrar by March 18, 2020.

 The FBR has clarified that holders of shares held in joint names or joint accounts will be treated individually as either filers or non-filers and 
 tax will be deducted according to the proportionate holding of each holder. All shareholders who hold shares jointly are requested to provide 
 shareholding proportions of Principal shareholder and Joint-holder(s) in respect of shares held  by them to our Shares Registrar, in writing as 
 follows:

The required information must reach our Share Registrar by the close of business on March 18, 2020; otherwise it will be assumed that the shares are 
equally held by Principal shareholder and Joint Holder(s) and deduction of withholding tax will be made accordingly.

UNPAID OR UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND/SHARES
Shareholders who could not collect their dividend/shares are advised to contact our Share Registrar to claim their unclaimed dividend or shares, if any.

The Unclaimed shares, Modaraba Certificates, Dividend, Other instruments which remain so unclaimed or unpaid for a period of three years from the date 
it is due and payable shall be dealt with in accordance with the requirements of section 244 of the Act.

CIRCULATION OF NOTICE OF MEETING & ANNUAL AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) vide SRO No. 470(I)/2016 dated May 31, 2016, has allowed listed companies to circulate their 
Annual Report to its members through CD/DVD/USB at their registered addresses instead of sending them in hard copies, subject to approval obtained 
from shareholders in General Meeting. Accordingly, the Company has obtained approval from members in the 16th Annual General Meeting held on April 
24, 2017. Pursuant to the approval of members, as aforesaid, the Annual Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 
2019 and the reports thereon, have been circulated to the members along with Notice of this meeting through CD/DVD/USB.

In terms of SRO No 787(I)/2014 dated September 8, 2014, shareholders can opt to obtain annual audited financial statements, auditor’s report and 
directors report etc. along with the notice of Annual General Meeting through email. The Companies Act, 2017 also allow electronic circulation of 
annual financial statements and reports thereon. Accordingly, we are pleased to offer this facility to our members who desire to receive Annual 
Financial Statements and Notices of the Company through e-mail in future. Annual Audited Financial Statements along with the notice of Annual Gener-
al Meeting have been circulated by email to those members who have requested for annual audited financial statements and profit and loss account, 
auditor’s report and directors report etc. along with the notice of Annual General Meeting through email.

For the convenience of shareholders, a Standard Request Form has been made available at the Company’s website i.e. www.pict.com.pk,  to opt receiving 
of future annual reports through email or in hard copies. Please ensure that your email has sufficient rights and space available to receive such email which 
may be larger than 1 MB file in size. Further, it is the responsibility of the member to timely update to the Share Registrar of any change in the registered 
email address.

The duly filled & signed form can be submitted through post/courier to the Company’s Share Registrar at the address given herein above. In case of CDC 
account holders, the same information should be provided directly to the CDS participant/ CDC Investor Account Services. The forms are also available at 
the Company website i.e. www.pict.com.pk. Members who do not provide their email ids or request for a hard copy shall continue to receive their future 
Annual Financial Statements and reports through CD/ DVD/USB at the registered address.

PLACEMENT OF ANNUAL AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ON WEBSITE
Annual audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2019 along with reports have been made available on the Compa-
ny’s website - www.pict.com.pk in terms of Regulation 25 of the Companies (General Provisions and Forms) regulations, 2018 together read with SRO 634 
of 2014.

SUBMISSION OF ZAKAT EXEMPTION
Members are requested to submit declaration as per Zakat & Ushr Ordinance, 1980 for Zakat exemption, if any, not later than March 18, 2020

CHANGE OF ADDRESS 
Any change of address of Members should be immediately notified to the Company’s share registrar M/S CDC Share Registrar Services Limited, CDC House, 
99-B, Block ‘B’, SMCHS, Main Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi.

CONVERSION OF SHARES IN BOOK-ENTRY FORM

Members holding shares in physical form are requested to consider converting their shares from physical form to book-entry form to eliminate all risks 
associated with physical shares. Members can contact the Company or Share Registrar for assistance in this regard.

Shareholders are requested to follow the procedure as contained in CDC Act, 1997 for the purpose.

Folio/CDC
Account
No.

Total
Shares CNIC No. SignatureName and

CNIC
No.

Name and
CNIC
No.

Shareholding
Proportion
(No. of Shares)

Shareholding
Proportion
(No. of Shares)

Principal Shareholder Joint Shareholder
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ICTSI:  International Container Terminal Services Incorporation

PICT:  Pakistan International Container Terminal Limited

KPT:  Karachi Port Trust

ISO:  International Organisation for Standardization

NIT:  National Investment Trust Limited

SRO:  Statutory Regulatory Orders

CEO:  Chief Executive Officer

CFO:  Chief Financial Officer

CSR:  Corporate Social Responsibility

CDC:  Central Depository Company

CDCSRSL:  CDC Share Registrar Services Limited

IFRS:  International Financial Reporting Standards

IFRIC:  International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee

ICAP:  Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan

Board:  Board of Directors

SRB:  Sindh Revenue Board

SECP:  Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan



FORM OF PROXY

The Company Secretary

Pakistan International Container Terminal Limited

Berth # 6-9, East Wharf, Keamari

Karachi Port, Karachi.

I/We, ________________________________ S/o, D/o, W/o, _____________________________________ of __________________________being a 

member of Pakistan International Container Terminal Limited (the Company) and holder of ___________________ Shares as per Share 

Register Folio No. _________ and/or CDC Participant I.D. No. _________ and Sub Account No. __________ hereby appoint Mr./Mrs./Miss 

_________________________________ of _______________________ as my/our proxy to attend, speak and vote for me / us and on my / our 

behalf at 19th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on March 25, 2020 at 11:00 a.m. Auditorium Hall, the Institute 

of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan, Chartered Accountants Avenue, Clifton, Karachi, and at any adjournment thereof.

As witnessed given under my / our hand(s) ___________ day of ____________ 2020

Witnesses:

1. Name ________________________________________________

Address ________________________________________________

CNIC No. ________________________________________________

Signature ________________________________________________

2. Name ________________________________________________ Shareholder’s Folio No._________________

Address ________________________________________________ CDC A/c No:                    _________________

CNIC No. _______________________________________________ NIC No:                            _________________

Signature _______________________________________________ Dated:                             _________________

Notes:

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting may appoint another person as his/her proxy who shall have such rights 

as respects attending, speaking and voting at the meeting as are available to a member.

2. The proxy in order to be valid must be signed across Five Rupees Revenue Stamp and should be deposited with the Company 

not later than 48 hours before the time of holding the Meeting.

3. The proxy shall authenticate his/her identity by showing his/her original CNIC or original passport and bring folio number at the 

time of attending the meeting.

4. Signature should agree with the specimen signature registered with the Company.

5. CDC shareholders and their Proxies must attach either an attested photocopy of their Computerized National Identity Card 

(CNIC) or Passport with this Proxy Form.

6. In case of proxy by a corporate entity/trust, Board of Directors/Trustees resolution / power of attorney with specimen signature 

and attested copies of CNIC or Passport of the proxy shall be submitted along with the proxy form.

Signature on
Rs. 5/-

Revenue Stamp



PAKISTAN INTERNATIONAL CONTAINER TERMINAL LIMITED

Admission Slip

For the 19th Annual General Meeting of Pakistan International Container Terminal Limited scheduled on Wednesday, March 25, 

2020 at 11:00 a.m. at Auditorium Hall, the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan, Chartered Accountants Avenue, 

Clifton, Karachi. Kindly bring this slip duly signed by you for attending the Meeting.

 

Folio No.     

Name        

Joint holder(s), if any,

i.                                                                

ii.                                                                

iii.                                                                 

NOTES:

i) The signature of the shareholder must tally with the specimen signature in the Company record.

ii) Shareholders are requested to hand over duly completed admission slips at the counter before entering the meeting 
 premises.

THIS ADMISSION SLIP IS NON TRANSFERABLE

COMPANY SECRETARY

 Signature (s)






